
Chief Executive’s Directorate
Pensions and Investments  The Parkhouse Building  Kingmoor Park  Carlisle

Cumbria  CA6 4SJ  Fax 01228 226231
Tel 01228 226608   Email pensions@cumbria.gov.uk

1

31 May 2016

To:  The Chair and Members of the Cumbria 
Fire Local Pension Board

Agenda
CUMBRIA FIRE LOCAL PENSION BOARD

A meeting of the Cumbria Fire Local Pension Board will be held as follows: 

Date: Wednesday 8 June 2016
Time: 2.00 pm
Place: Committee Room 2, The Courts, Carlisle, CA3 8NA

Dawn Roberts
Assistant Director – Corporate Governance 

Enquiries and requests for supporting papers to:  Gill Welbourn
Direct Line: 01228 226566
Email: gill.welbourn@cumbria.gov.uk

This agenda is available on request in alternative formats

Serving the People of Cumbria



2

MEMBERSHIP

Mr B Doughty (Chair)
Mr G Strong
Mr G Higgins
Mr M Nicholson



3

A G E N D A

1  APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

To receive any apologies for absence.

2  MEMBERSHIP

To note any changes in membership to the Board.

3  DISCLOSURES OF INTEREST

Members are invited to disclose any disclosable pecuniary interest they have in any item 
on the agenda which comprises

1 Details of any employment, office, trade, profession or vocation carried on for 
profit or gain. 

2 Details of any payment or provision of any other financial benefit (other than from 
the authority) made or provided within the relevant period in respect of any 
expenses incurred by you in carrying out duties as a member, or towards your 
election expenses.  (This includes any payment or financial benefit from a trade 
union within the meaning of the Trade Union and Labour Relations 
(Consolidation) Act 1992. 

3 Details of any contract which is made between you (or a body in which you have 
a beneficial interest) and the authority 

(a) Under which goods or services are to be provided or works are to be 
executed; and 

(b) Which has not been fully discharged. 

4 Details of any beneficial interest in land which is within the area of the authority.  

5 Details of any licence (alone or jointly with others) to occupy land in the area of 
the authority for a month or longer.  

6 Details of any tenancy where (to your knowledge) 

(a) The landlord is the authority; and

(b) The tenant is a body in which you have a beneficial 
interest.

7 Details of any beneficial interest in securities of a body where

(a) That body (to your knowledge) has a place of business or land in the 



4

area of the authority; and

(b) Either – 

(i) The total nominal value of the securities exceeds £25,000 or one 
hundredth of the total issued share capital of that body; or

(ii) If that share capital of that body is of more than one class, the total 
nominal value of the shares of any one class in which the relevant 
person has a beneficial interest exceeds one hundredth of the total 
issued share capital of that class.

In addition, you must also disclose other non-pecuniary interests set out in the Code of 
Conduct where these have not already been registered.

Note

A “disclosable pecuniary interest” is an interest of a councillor or their partner 
(which means spouse or civil partner, a person with whom they are living as 
husband or wife, or a person with whom they are living as if they are civil 
partners).   

4  EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC

To consider whether the press and public should be excluded from the meeting during 
consideration of any items on the agenda.

5  MINUTES

To receive the minutes of the previous meeting held on 24 November 2015.      

6  FUTURE MEETINGS

Dates of future meetings of the Board are proposed:-

 14 October 2016 at 2pm
 April 2017 (date tbc)

7  THE PENSION'S REGULATOR - SURVEY OF PUBLIC SERVICE PENSION 
SCHEMES DECEMBER 2015

To receive a report from the Assistant Director – Finance

PART 2: ITEMS LIKELY TO BE CONSIDERED IN THE ABSENCE OF THE PRESS 
AND PUBLIC

8  DISCRETIONS POLICY

To receive a report from the Assistant Director - Finance



5

9  MONITORING REPORT FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 31 MARCH 2016

To receive a report from the Assistant Director - Finance



This page is intentionally left blank



CUMBRIA FIRE LOCAL PENSION BOARD

Minutes of the first Meeting of the Cumbria Fire Local Pension Board held on 
Tuesday, 24th November at 12:30pm in the Kraemer Room, The Courts, Carlisle, 
CA3 8NA.

PRESENT:

Employer Representatives

Barry Doughty - CCC(Chair)
Gary Strong - CCC

Employee (member) Representatives 

Graeme Higgins - Active & FBU 
member
Mark Nicholson - Active/Deferred & FBU 
member

Also in Attendance:-

Jim Onions - Chief Fire Officer
Fiona Miller - Senior Manager - Pensions & Financial Services 
Julie Dole - Finance Manager - Regulatory & Benefits 
Gill Welbourn - Technical Finance Officer - Pensions Investments

Before the formal meeting commenced the following business was 
conducted:

Jim Onions formally welcomed everyone.  

All attendees briefly introduced themselves.

Fiona Miller explained her role as officer support to the group and outlined how the 
wider Pensions team within the Council were well-matched to help deal with the 
operation and workload of the Fire Local Pension Board. 

The issue of voting was clarified for members, as per the terms of reference.  

As Mark and Graeme are both employees, and have to take time off from their 
current roles to attend meetings, Jim Onions reassured both that this activity was 
supported by the service and that time off to attend meetings would be provided. It 
was also agreed that if they are unable to attend that Officers from the pensions 
Team would ensure they were verbally updated on the business discussed.

The Board also agreed that going forward meetings will be held in Penrith- as this 
was deemed to be a more central location for the majority of members.

 APPOINTMENT OF CHAIR & VICE CHAIR

7

Agenda Item 5



2

Per the terms of reference of the Board “the Scheme Manager will appoint the Chair 
& Vice Chair. The roles will be split with one being a scheme member representative 
and one being a scheme employer representative and this will be alternated on a 
two yearly cycle”.

The following appointments were made:-

Chair - Employer Representative, CCC  Cllr Barry Doughty

Vice Chair - Employee Representative, Active Mark Nicholson

PART 1 – ITEMS CONSIDERED IN THE 
PRESENCE OF THE PUBLIC AND PRESS

1 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

Apologies for absence were received from Julie Crellin – Assistant Director 
(Finance) s151 Officer. 

2 EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC

There were no press or public in attendance.

3 MEMBERSHIP & TERMS OF REFERENCE

Note the appointment of Barry Doughty as Chair, and Mark Nicholson as Vice Chair.

Fiona Miller explained that the Board was constituted under the Public Service 
Pension Act 2013.  As a this is new national initiative there is only limited guidance 
currently available over what matters it should aim to cover.  It was reiterated that 
the core function of the Board is to ‘assist’ the Scheme Manager fulfil its functions 
and that as a Board it has no delegated authority to take decisions on behalf of the 
administering authority. The core functions of the Board are deemed to cover all 
aspects of governance, administration and efficiency of the Pension Scheme.

 CODE OF CONDUCT REQUIREMENTS

Per Para 5.6 of the Report at Agenda Item 4 “There is a requirement for all Board 
Members to make a declaration in advance of conducting business, and as such at 
the first meeting confirmation of the Code and registration of compliance with the 

8



3

requirements regarding conflicts of interest, will be considered as the first agenda 
item.”

The Form “Notification by member of Cumbria County Council of pecuniary 
and other registrable interests” had been distributed to each member for 
completion before the meeting.  These had all been returned and filed with the 
Council’s Monitoring Officer (Dawn Roberts).

FM explained that these will be published on the website within 28 days and that 
any changes need to be notified to the Monitoring Officer (Dawn Roberts) within 28 
days.  It was confirmed that all confidential information would be removed first.

BD asked how the equal representation of Unions was approached in determining 
Board membership, as both employee reps are FBU (Fire Brigade Union) members.

FM explained that scheme membership consists of active, deferred and pensioner 
members.  In order to ensure appropriate representation all members had been 
given the opportunity to apply for Board membership. Applications were considered, 
and applications considered, with the most suitable candidates being appointed.
 
4 GOVERNANCE REQUIREMENTS TO ESTABLISH THE CUMBRIA LGPS 

LOCAL PENSION BOARD

Consideration was given to a report by the Assistant Director – Finance, setting out 
the governance requirements that needed to be addressed to ensure the 
operational governance of the Cumbria Fire LPB meets legislative requirements. To 
ensure adherence to this it was recommended that the Board is required to formally 
adopt the Cumbria Fire Scheme Code of Conduct (Conflict of Interest) Policy.  

It also explained that Members are required to confirm their broad understanding of 
the role of the Board, and the individual knowledge and understanding requirements 
for Members of a Local Pension Board. FM reassured members that training will be 
provided, and a paper covering the Training Policy and Plan will be brought to a 
future meeting.  It was outlined that this will be a dynamic plan in order to adapt to 
ongoing events and individual or group Member needs.

Members Agreed both the recommendations: (3.1) to adopt the draft Cumbria Fire 
Local Pension Board Code of Conduct (Conflict of Interest) Policy, and (3.2) 
confirming their broad understanding of the role of the Board, and their individual 
knowledge and understanding requirements.

Members were informed that officers will arrange dedicated online access to training 
material, key documents and meeting papers. 

5    DISCLOSURES OF INTEREST

There were no disclosures of interest.  
  
6 MINUTES

9



4

This is the first meeting of the Board therefore there are no minutes of previous 
meetings.

7 FUTURE MEETINGS

Dates of future meetings of the Board are proposed:-

 March 2016 - to be confirmed.
 September 2016 - to be confirmed

GH requested for hard copies of invites to future meetings, and that Jim Onions be 
copied in.

8 TRAINING – AN OVERVIEW OF THE FIRE PENSION SCHEME

There were two information briefing sessions:-

 Session One was delivered by Julie Dole, Finance Manager - Regulatory & 
Benefits.

This session covered: National and Cumbria governance structures; Cumbria 
Scheme specifics; roles and responsibilities of Cumbria Fire Local Pension Board 
and an overview of Firefighters’ Pension Schemes.

 Session Two was delivered by Julie Wigg - Partnerships Manager, Your 
Pension Service(YPS)

This provided an overview of the Pensions Administration Service.

The collaborative nature of the YPS service was explained.  JW reported that 
service statistics were good, and it was agreed that these would be formally 
reported at each Board meeting going forward.

JW also informed Members that the Pension Regulator’s Toolkit was a very useful 
resource.

JW explained that YPS had held several roadshows following the changes to the 
Scheme, and these had been attended by approx. 50 firefighters.  MN confirmed he 
had attended one of these and found it very useful.  
BD and JO expressed interest in a roadshow for the Senior Management Team 
which could then be cascaded down, Officers to review how best to progress this.  
 
GH raised a question on tapered protection, as it is currently not possible to do 
online queries (a particular problem as Cumbria has a proportionately large number 
of firefighter with tapered provision).  It was explained that this is due to the late 
publication of the Regulations, and that resolving this issue was dependant on the 
software provider.  It was agreed that this would be followed up, and an update 
brought to the next Board meeting.

10



5

BD formally thanked the presenters for these informative sessions.

9 NEW POLICY ON REPORTING BREACHES TO THE PENSION 

Consideration was given to a report by the Assistant Director – Finance on the new 
policy on reporting breaches to the Pensions Regulator.  It was explained that all 
individuals with a role in the Fire Pension Scheme (including the Local Pension 
Board) have a duty to report breaches of the law when they have a reasonable 
cause to believe that:

A legal duty relevant to the administration of the scheme has not been, or is not 
being complied with; and

The failure to comply is likely to be of material significance to the regulator.

There is a traffic light framework for deciding whether or not to report.  If identified 
but not reported it was explained that these still need to be recorded, and they will 
be reported to the Fire LPB.

The proposed policy and process for identifying, assessing and reporting/recording 
breaches of the law for the Cumbria Fire Scheme was set out in this report and 
Members were asked to endorse and adopt the content of the policy. 

(Breaches will be reported to the Board at each meeting, but they should also be 
reported to full Council – procedure to be agreed).

10 KEY FUND AND WIDER GOVERNANCE DOCUMENTS

The following documents were distributed in the meeting:

A. Cumbria County Council Audited Annual Financial Report 2014/15
B. Grant Thornton – The Audit Findings for Cumbria County Council year ended 

31 March 2015
C. Your Pension Service (YPS) Annual Administration Report 2015 
D. Lancashire County Council Internal Audit Report - Pension Administration 

Cumbria County Council - Final Report, April 2015
E. Cumbria Fire Pension Scheme Discretions Policy (Draft)
F. Code of Practice no.14 – Governance and Administration of Public Sector 

Pension Schemes
G. Listing of useful websites and information sources

The draft Discretions Policy was left with Board Members for review/comment.

BD and JO stated that they will be attending the LGA Annual Fire Conference in 
March, and will report any useful information to the next Board meeting.

11



6

Meeting finished at 14:25pm.

12



FIRE LOCAL PENSION BOARD

Meeting date: 8th June 2016

From: Assistant Director – Finance 

THE PENSIONS REGULATOR – SURVEY OF PUBLIC SERVICE 
PENSION SCHEMES DECEMBER 2015

1.0 EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

1.1 Between July and September 2015, the Pensions Regulator conducted 
a survey of all public service schemes to assess the standard to which 
they are being run.
 

1.2 The findings provide a useful overview of public service pension 
schemes and may be useful to identify areas of focus for our operation 
of the Firefighters’ Pension Scheme.

2.0 STRATEGIC PLANNING AND EQUALITY IMPLICATIONS

2.1 There are no equality implications from this report.

3.0 RECOMMENDATIONS

3.1 That Members note the report.

4.0 BACKGROUND

4.1 A well run scheme should provide members with a high standard of service 
and a clear understanding of the benefits they will receive, allowing them to 
plan for their financial future.  Good governance and administration also help 
government and the public to have confidence that the cost of public service 
schemes is correctly accounted for.

4.2 The survey reflected the key tools and processes considered to be benchmarks for 
good practice, as set out in the ‘practical guidance’ sections of the Code of Practice 
no.14 – Governance and Administration of Public Sector Pension Schemes (the 

13

Agenda Item 7



Code).  Participation was voluntary, with 48% of schemes responding which 
accounted for approximately 85% of public service scheme members.

4.3 The results of the survey show that public service schemes are progressing well in 
terms of understanding the new requirements and setting up processes :-

4.4 The lowest result in terms of processes was around reporting breaches, where only 
55% of schemes reported having procedures in place to enable the scheme manager, 
pension board members, and others who have a duty to report, to identify and assess 
breaches of the law.  This is an area which has already been addressed by this Board, 
with a policy being approved at the 29 October 2015, Board meeting and regular 
updates being included at each meeting as a matter of course in the monitoring 
report (item 7 on this agenda).

4.5 The Regulator expects well-run schemes to have in place appropriate tools and 
processes for all nine areas addressed in the Code-

 Knowledge and Understanding
 Conflicts of Interest GOVERNANCE
 Publishing Scheme information

 Internal Controls/Managing Risks

14



 Scheme record-keeping ADMINISTRATION
 Maintaining contributions
 Providing information to members

 Internal dispute resolution RESOLVING ISSUES
 Reporting breaches of law

4.6 The Cumbria Scheme has fulfilled basic terms of compliance by registering with the 
Pensions Regulator, establishing this Board, and publishing information about the 
Board.  However, going forward the Scheme will need to assess themselves against 
requirements set out in legislation and in the Code, identify any gaps, and begin to 
put plans in place to address any issues.  Schemes can use the Survey and public 
service toolkit to do this, and in addition the Regulator will be launching a self-
assessment tool in 2016 to further assist.  

4.7 Looking ahead, the Pensions Regulator plans to publish an annual assessment of 
governance and administration standards and practices in public service schemes in 
order to bring greater transparency to the progress being made.  The survey 
suggested that fire and rescue schemes had not made as much progress as other 
public service schemes, and the Regulator does intend to engage with them over the 
next year to identify barriers to progress and provide any support required. 

5.0 OPTIONS

5.1 To agree to note the report. 

6.0 RESOURCE AND VALUE FOR MONEY IMPLICATIONS

A well governed Scheme is an effective way of providing not only an 
effective and efficient service to its members, but is also an effective means 
of  mitigating additional costs due to additional costs and potential fines that 
may arise due to policy and legislative breaches.

7.0 LEGAL IMPLICATIONS

7.1 The report is for the Board to note and there are therefore no direct legal 
implications.

15



8.0 CONCLUSION

8.1 The Scheme has fulfilled many of the requirements of the Code and has 
appropriate tools and processes in place.  However, the Regulator is likely to 
keep a close eye on Fire and Rescue Schemes in the coming months, and 
intends to use its educate/enable/enforce approach to help schemes with 
compliance and addressing key risks. The Scheme must continue to develop 
procedures in order to maintain the current high standards of governance. 

J Crellin
Assistant Director – Finance (Section 151 Officer)
June 2016

APPENDICES

Appendix 1 Public Service Governance and Administration Survey- December 
2015

IMPLICATIONS

Electoral Division(s): All

Executive Decision No*

Key Decision No*

If a Key Decision, is the proposal published in the current Forward Plan? N/A*

Is the decision exempt from call-in on grounds of urgency? No*

N/A*If exempt from call-in, has the agreement of the Chair of the relevant 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee been sought or obtained?

No*Has this matter been considered by Overview and Scrutiny?
If so, give details below.

N/A*Has an environmental or sustainability impact assessment been 
undertaken?

N/A*Has an equality impact assessment been undertaken?

PREVIOUS RELEVANT COUNCIL OR EXECUTIVE DECISIONS
None

16



REPORT AUTHOR
Fiona Miller, Senior Manager – Pensions & Financial Services (Deputy s.151 
Officer LGPS)  
01228 226288 Fiona.miller@cumbria.gov.uk  

Gill Welbourn, Technical Finance Officer – Pensions
01228 226566 Gill.welbourn@cumbria.gov.uk

17

mailto:Fiona.miller@cumbria.gov.uk
mailto:Gill.welbourn@cumbria.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



December 2015

Public service governance 
and administration survey
Summary of results and commentary

19



Public service governance and administration survey Summary of results and commentary 2

Foreword
The Public Service Pensions Act 2013 (NI 2014) introduced a number of 
changes for public service pension schemes, which provide pensions for 
the armed forces, local government, NHS, teachers, civil servants, the 
police force, firefighters and the judiciary. 

Between them these schemes represent 
around 13 million members and approximately 
28,000 employers, and we recognise they 
face a significant challenge in implementing 
the reforms to benefit design alongside new 
governance arrangements.

High standards of governance and 
administration are essential to ensure that 
schemes operate effectively and efficiently, 
and provide the right benefits to the right 
person at the right time. 

A well run scheme should provide members 
with a high standard of service and a clear 
understanding of the benefits they will 
receive, allowing them to plan for their future. 
Good governance and administration also 
help government and the public to have 
confidence that the cost of public service 
schemes is correctly accounted for.

Between July and September 2015, we 
conducted a survey of all public service 
schemes to baseline the standard to which 
they are being run. I am pleased to introduce 
this report which sets out our thoughts on  
the results of the survey and our priorities  
for action. 

The results tell us that progress is being 
made – nine in ten respondent schemes 
have established their pension boards, and 
schemes have done well in setting up new 
processes. However, the governance and 
administration standards of some schemes still 
fall short of standards we expect, and we urge 
schemes to take immediate action to identify 
gaps and put plans in place to resolve issues. 

In the next year, part of our focus will be to 
ensure that every scheme reaches a basic level 
of compliance, having registered with us and 
published information about their pension 
boards. We also expect all schemes to have 
assessed themselves against the law and our 
code of practice, and we will be launching a self-
assessment tool to help schemes achieve this. 

We will work to understand how well schemes 
are addressing the three areas we judge to 
be of greatest risk in the current landscape 
– internal controls, scheme record-keeping, 
and the provision of accurate, timely and high 
quality communications to members. 

We will continue to work with scheme 
managers, pension boards, and others 
involved in running public service schemes 
and provide a range of educational tools to 
support them in their duties. 

I would like to thank all schemes who took 
part in the survey, as you have helped us gain 
a good understanding of the landscape. We 
aim to work openly and collaboratively with 
schemes and we will engage further with 
schemes who did not take part to ensure their 
lack of engagement does not reflect a lack of 
compliance.

Thank you for taking the time to read 
this report – I hope you find it useful and 
informative.

 

Andrew Warwick-Thompson 
Executive Director for Regulatory Policy

20



Public service governance and administration survey Summary of results and commentary 3

Background
The Public Service Pensions Act 2013 (PSPA13) and Public Service 
Pensions Act (Northern Ireland) 2014 (PSPANI14) introduced new 
requirements for the governance and administration of public service 
pension schemes. In April 2015, we commenced our expanded role to 
regulate these schemes. 

Our role is to regulate the governance and administration of public 
service pension schemes to improve standards and drive compliance 
with legal requirements. Our focus is to work with scheme managers, 
pension boards and others involved with public service schemes to help 
them become compliant. Our approach generally is to educate and 
enable in the first instance, but where a scheme manager or pension 
board member (or other person responsible) fails to comply with their 
duties we will consider using our powers. 

The survey 
In summer 2015, we conducted a survey of all public service schemes to 
assess how they are meeting the governance and administration legal 
requirements and the standard to which they are being run. The survey 
reflected the key tools and processes we consider to be benchmarks for 
good practice, as set out in the ‘practical guidance’ sections of our code, 
and could be used as a tool for the schemes to identify areas where 
action may be needed. 

This report accompanies the full research report which sets out the 
responses to all survey questions. 

Participation in the survey was voluntary, with 48% of schemes 
responding. This translates to approximately 85% of public service 
scheme members, and provides us with a good overview of the public 
service pensions landscape.

Information collected through the survey will be used for regulatory 
purposes where responses were not provided anonymously. We will 
use these to develop individual scheme risk profiles. Where schemes 
did not participate in the survey, we will consider there is a risk of non-
compliance until we have collected information about the progress they 
have made. 

Our role is to 
regulate public 
service pension 
schemes 
to improve 
standards 
and drive 
compliance 
with legal 
requirements.

21



Public service governance and administration survey Summary of results and commentary 4

Overview of results

Progress on processes
The results of the survey show that, on the whole, public service schemes are progressing well 
in terms of understanding the new requirements and setting up processes. Respondents to 
the survey reported high levels of awareness and understanding of both the governance and 
administration requirements introduced by the Acts and our code of practice:

 � 97% reported high awareness of the requirements in the Acts, and 87% reported good 
understanding.

 � 93% reported high awareness of our code, and 84% reported good understanding.

There were also high levels of reported processes in place against most areas of the code.

78+87+87+76+77+97+55x+
78% have policies to help 
board members acquire and 
retain knowledge

87% have a conflicts policy 
and procedure for pension 
board members

87% have procedures for 
publishing information

76% have documented 
procedures for assessing 
and managing risk

77% have record-keeping 
policies and procedures 
for all members

97% have a 
process for 
monitoring 
payment of 
contributions

55% have procedures for 
identifying and assessing 
law breaches

Results overview

22



Public service governance and administration survey Summary of results and commentary 5

Overview of results

 � 78% of schemes reported having developed policies and 
arrangements to help pension board members fully understand 
their roles, responsibilities and duties.

 � 87% of schemes have a conflicts policy and procedure in place for 
pension board members.

 � 87% of schemes reported having procedures in place to ensure that 
information about the pension board which must be published is 
published and kept up to date.

 � 76% had documented procedures for assessing and managing risk.

 � 77% had policies and processes in place to monitor data on an 
ongoing basis to ensure that it is accurate and complete in relation 
to all relevant member and beneficiary categories.

 � 97% had a method or process for monitoring the payment of 
contributions to the scheme. 

The lowest result in terms of processes was around reporting breaches, 
where only 55% of schemes reported having procedures in place to 
enable the scheme manager, pension board members, and others who 
have a duty to report, to identify and assess breaches of the law. 

Identifying and assessing breaches of the law is critical both in terms of 
fulfilling the legal duty to report breaches to us and in reducing risk, so 
it is important that schemes address this issue. Whilst we will strive to 
regulate proactively and investigate issues we consider to be high risk, 
reporting breaches is a key means by which we are made aware as soon 
as possible when things are going wrong. Accordingly, we urge schemes 
to establish and operate appropriate and effective procedures to  
help them meet their legal obligation. Our code provides guidance on 
this matter. 

In addition, we expect well-run schemes to have in place appropriate 
tools and processes for all nine areas addressed in our code – but only 
43% of schemes reported having all the processes outlined above  
in place.

We also expect schemes to ensure that any processes developed are 
kept under regular review to ensure they remain effective and fit for 
purpose. According to the survey, only 72% of schemes review/will 
review the effectiveness of their risk management and internal control 
systems at least annually, and over 10% of schemes report they never 
review their internal dispute resolution arrangements. 

23



Public service governance and administration survey Summary of results and commentary 6

Need to take action
In contrast to the good progress made on setting up processes, the survey shows that schemes are 
slow or have yet to take action in key governance and administration areas and are still in the early 
stages of assessing themselves against the legal requirements and standards in the code.

 � 44% have measured against the 
record-keeping requirements

 � just over a quarter have done  
data cleansing 

49+51+z
PSPA 
2013

0101010001101000011001010
0100000010101000111001001
1101010111001101110100011
0010101100101001000000101
0100011011110110111101101
1000110101101101001011101
0000100000011010010111001
1001000000110011101110010
011001010110000101110100

PSPA 
2013

0101010001101000011001010
0100000010101000111001001
1101010111001101110100011
0010101100101001000000101
0100011011110110111101101
1000110101101101001011101
0000100000011010010111001
1001000000110011101110010
011001010110000101110100

PSPA 
2013

0101010001101000011001010
0100000010101000111001001
1101010111001101110100011
0010101100101001000000101
0100011011110110111101101
1000110101101101001011101
0000100000011010010111001
1001000000110011101110010
011001010110000101110100

PSPA 
2013

0101010001101000011001010
0100000010101000111001001
1101010111001101110100011
0010101100101001000000101
0100011011110110111101101
1000110101101101001011101
0000100000011010010111001
1001000000110011101110010
011001010110000101110100

have established a pension board
9
10

Less than a third 
have a plan in place to ensure 
compliance with the Public 
Service Pensions Act 2013

have reviewed  
their scheme against 

the standards

Less 
than 
half

Only 56% assess their risks 
at least quarterly 

76% of schemes 
have procedures in 
place to manage risk

82% have a risk register

Overview of results

24



Public service governance and administration survey Summary of results and commentary 7

 � While over nine in ten schemes have established a pension board, 
only 28% of schemes have a plan in place and are addressing key 
issues to ensure compliance with the new requirements.

 � Only 44% have reviewed their scheme against the practical 
guidance and standards set out in our code of practice. 

 � Only 45% of schemes have measured themselves against the 
requirements of the record-keeping regulations. 

 � Only 27% have as a result undertaken a data cleansing exercise. 
More generally, only 71% have conducted a data review exercise in 
the last year. 

 � While 76% of schemes have procedures in place to manage risk, 
and 82% report having a risk register, only 56% assess their risks 
either quarterly or monthly. 

Differences between schemes
Though the data in this commentary are presented at an aggregate 
level for all public service schemes, we recognise the complexity and 
diversity of the landscape. Schemes vary in their governance structures, 
employer profiles, size and funding arrangements and each scheme 
will have its own needs and capabilities, and face its own challenges in 
implementing the reforms. 

This is supported by the findings which show differences between scheme 
cohorts. In particular, the survey suggests that fire and rescue schemes 
have not made as much progress in taking steps to meet the new 
requirements as other schemes, whether in setting up processes or taking 
specific action. Over the next year, we will engage with these schemes’ 
managers, pension board members, and other stakeholders to identify 
barriers to progress and support them in meeting their duties. 

Next steps
This research draws out the continuing significant task faced by schemes 
in implementing the major reforms. However, schemes need to ensure 
they comply with the legal requirements and should strive to deliver 
better outcomes for members. 

Over the next year, we will be looking to ensure that every scheme 
reaches a basic level of compliance, as well as looking at the 
effectiveness of processes in areas we have identified as being of 
greatest risk in the current landscape: internal controls, scheme record-
keeping and the provision of accurate and high quality communications 
to members.

We recognise 
the complexity 
and diversity of 
the landscape.

25



Public service governance and administration survey Summary of results and commentary 8

Next steps

In terms of basic compliance, it is critical that all schemes have:

 � fulfilled their requirement to register with us

 � established their pension board

 � published information about the board, which will provide more 
transparency to members on the governance of the scheme

Schemes also need to have:

 � assessed themselves against the requirements set out in legislation

 � assessed themselves against the standards set out in our code

 � identified any gaps 

 � begun to put plans in place to address any issues

In addition to the code and our public service toolkit, we would like 
schemes to use this survey to assess themselves. We will also be 
launching a self-assessment tool in 2016. We urge schemes to use these 
tools to help them identify any problems and take swift action to make 
improvements. We are concerned that the failure of 52% of schemes to 
engage with the survey may reflect a lack of compliance, and we will be 
engaging with these schemes to determine their compliance profile. We 
expect all schemes to respond to our requests for information.

We plan to look at schemes’ processes in the key risk areas over the next 
year, focusing on:

 � the effectiveness of these processes and actions in driving good 
outcomes

 � the efficiency and reliability of these processes

 � how good practice in one scheme can help inform others with 
poorer practices

Public service schemes have complex governance structures, where 
responsible authorities and scheme advisory boards will also have a role 
in helping scheme managers achieve compliance. We will be working 
throughout the year with these various bodies to ensure that our 
respective efforts are applied in the most effective way and to minimise 
the burden on schemes. 

In spring 2016, we will check how schemes are doing and we expect 
them to have made significant progress. Looking ahead, we plan 
to publish an annual assessment of governance and administration 
standards and practices in public service schemes in order to bring 
greater transparency to the progress being made. 

26



How to contact us
Napier House 
Trafalgar Place 
Brighton 
BN1 4DW 
 
www.tpr.gov.uk

Public service governance and administration survey 
Summary of results and commentary 
 
© The Pensions Regulator December 2015

You can reproduce the text in this publication as long as you quote 
The Pensions Regulator’s name and title of the publication. Please 
contact us if you have any questions about this publication. This 
document aims to be fully compliant with WCAG 2.0 accessibility 
standards and we can produce it in Braille, large print or in audio 
format. We can also produce it in other languages.

www.trusteetoolkit.com 
Free online learning for trustees 
 
www.pensionseducationportal.com 
Free online learning for those running public service schemes

27



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

29

Agenda Item 8
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

33

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

57

Agenda Item 9
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

67

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

77

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

87

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

89

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

103

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

121

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	5 MINUTES
	7 The Pension's Regulator - Survey of Public Service Pension Schemes December 2015
	Paper 7 Appendix 1 - Public Service Governance and Administration -Summary of results and commentary , December 2015

	8 Discretions Policy
	Paper 8 Appendix 1 Scheme Manager Discretions (Cumbria County Council)

	9 Monitoring Report for the period ended 31 March 2016
	Paper 9 Appendix 1 Risk Register
	Paper 9 Appendix 2 YPS performance report
	Paper 9 Appendix 3 Register of Breaches
	Paper 9 Appendix 4 Admin & Comms Strategy
	Paper 9 Appendix 5 Extract from CCC Annual Report and Accounts 2014-15
	Paper 9 Appendix 6 - Final IA report, 2015-16- Pensions Admin


